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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MASRAF AL RAYAN (Q.8.C.}

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Masraf Al Rayan
(Q.8.C) (the “Masraf”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group™), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Board of Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards
issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Istamic Financial Institutions, the
Islamic Shari’a Rules and Principles and the applicable provisions of Qatar Ceniral Bank
regulations, and for such internal control as Board of Directors’ determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from malerial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducied our audit in accordance with both the International Standards on
Auditing and the Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial Institutions. Those standards require
that we comiply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors” judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation. and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Board of Directors’, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Globat Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MASRAF AL RAYAN (Q.S.C.) (CONTINUED)

Opinicn

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards issued
by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions; the Islamic
Shari’a Rules and Principles as determined by the Shari'a Supervisory Board of the Masraf and
the applicable provisions of Qatar Central Bank regulations.

Report on other legal and regulatory matters

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we considered necessary for the
purpose of our audit. We further confirm that the financial information included in the Annual
Report of the Board of Directors is in agreement with the books and records of the Group and
that we are not aware of any contravention by the Masraf of its Articles of Association, the Qatar
Comrercial Companies Law No. 5 of 2002, the applicable provisions of Qatar Central Bank
regulations and Law No 33 of 2006 during the financial year that would have materially affected
its activities or its financial position.

X‘ P

. g
Firas Qoussous
of Ernst & Young
Auditor's Registration No. 236

Date: 29 January 2012
Doha
State of Qatar
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2011

ASSETS.

Cash and balances with Qatar Central Bank

Balances and investments with banks and other financial institutions
Receivablés and balances from financing activities

Financial investments

Investment property

Investment in associates

Other assets

Property, furniture and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT
ACCOUNTHOLDERS, NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities

Customers’ current accounts

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS

Non-confrolling interest

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital

Legal reserve

Fair value reserve

Risk reserve

Proposed dividend

Retained earnings

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT
ACCOUNTHOLDERS, NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Dr. Hussain A Al Abdulla
Chairman and Managing Director

Notes

I - TR

12

13

14

15
15
15
15
15

2011
QAR’000

2,253,317

4,274,199 -

34,765,827
12,046,247
91,250
1,431,286
338,794
70,506

55,271,336

4,171,358
503,467

4,674,825
42,092,234

343

7,500,000
141,871
- 8,795.
450,000
375,000

28,268

8,503,934

55,271,336

Adel Mustafawi
Group Chief Executive Officer

The attached notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2010
QAR '000

1,481,785
4,988,930
25,063,967
2,136,919
160,220
386,494
378,100

86,956

34,683,371

1,292,350

540,031
1,832,381

25,724,198 .

343

5,073,324
6,117

1,976,084

| 70,924

7,126,449

34,683,371
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year Ended 31 December 2011

Notes
Income from financing activities - 16
Income from investing activities 17.
Total income from finapcing and investing activities
Commission and fees income
Commission and fees expense
Net commission and fees income 18
Gain from foreign exchange operations
Other income 19
Share of results of associates 9
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME
General and administrative expenses 20
Depreciation 11
Impairment losses on receivables from financing activities 6
Impairment losses on financial investments
Impairment losses on other assets
Recoveriés of impairment losses on other assets
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE RETURN ON EQUITY OF
UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS
Less: Return on equity of unrestricted investment accountholders 21
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PARENT
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (QAR) 22

2011
OAR’600

1,282,934

606,895

1,889,829

247,398
(1,765)

246,133

39,804
199,554
- 14,849

2,390,169
(295.328)
(19,987)
(70,866)
(14,562)
(1,563)

1,987,863

(578,253)

1,409,610

(1,260)

1,408,350

1.878 |

The attached notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2010
OAR000

1,618,272
36,690

1,704,962

111,057

(15,839)
95,218

37.262
103,178

(1,789}

1,938,831
(217,311)
(19,848)
(1,477)
(7,281)
(1,563)
91,250
1,782,601
(571,257)

1,211,344

1,211,344

1.615
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year Ended 31 December 2011

Notes
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 3!
Gain on disposal of subsidiary 19

Amortisation of discount on financial investments

Impairment lasses on receivables from financing activities

Impairment losses on financial investments 7
Impairment losses on other assets

Recovery of impairment losses on other assets

Share of results of associates 9

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabiliiies

Net decrease (increass) in assefs:

Cash reserve with Qatar Central Bank

Receivables and balances from financing activities
Other assets

Net increase (decrease) in fiabilities:
Customers’ current accounts
Other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of preperty, furniture and equipment 1
Purchase of financial investments

Purchase of investment property

Proceeds from sale and redemption of financial investments

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary 19
Investment in associates 9
Return of capital of associate company ' 9

Net ¢ash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuance of share capital 15
Increase in equity of unrestricted investment accountholders 13
Net movement in non-controlling interest 14

Net cash from financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 23

2011
QAR’000

1,408,350

19,987

(171,863)

(18,736)
70,866
14,562
1,563

(4849

1,309,880

(604,813)
(9,772,726)
43,412

2,879,008
(72,390)

(6,217,629)

(9,206)

(10,000,000)

(2,027,706)
97,653
1,220,301

18,912

(10,700,046)

1,666
16,367,907

16,369,573
(548,102)

5,568,028

5,019,926

The attached notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2010
QAR 000

1,211,344

19,848

1477

7,281

1,563
(91,250)

1,789

1,152,052

(539,074)
(7.314,982)
(219,100)

(177,710)

156,720

(6,942,094)

(24,129)
(1,395,611)

139,548

(182,196)

(1,462,388)

9,363,016
343

9,363,359

958,877

4,609,151

5,568,028

5
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

1 LEGAL STATUS AND MAIN ACTIVITIES

Masraf Al Rayan (Q.8.C.) (“Masraf”) was incorporated as Qatari Public Shareholding Company under Article 68
of Qatar Commercial Companies” Law No. 5 of 2002, under decision No. 11 of 2006 dated 4 January 2006 of the
Minister of Business and Trade.

Masraf and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) is engaged in banking, financing, investing and
brokerage activities in accordance with its Articles of Incerporation, Islamic Shari’e principles and regulations of
Qatar Central Bank and operates through its head office located at Grand Hamad Steet, Doha, and local branches,
all operating in the State of Qatar. The Masraf is listed and its shares are traded in the Qatar Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements of Masraf Al Rayan Q.S.C. for the year ended 31 December 2011 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 29 January 2012.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set out
below:

2.1 Basis of preparation

Accounting convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
measurement at fair value of financial investments classified as “investments at fair value through equity” and
derivative financial instruments.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Qatari Riyals and all values are rounded to the nearest QAR
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial staterents of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 have been prepared in

accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards (“FASs™ issued by the Accounting and Auditing
Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (“AAOIFI”), the applicable provisions of the Qatar Comimercial
Companies Law No. 5 of 2002, Islamic Shari’a Rules and Principles as determined by the Shari’a Supervisory
Board and relevant laws and instructions issued by Qatar Central Bank. For matters for whick no AAOIFI
standards exist, the Group applies the relevant Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis of consolidation

The conselidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Masraf Al Rayan (Q.5.C} and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2011. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as Masraf Al Rayan, using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances and transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full,

Subsidiaries are fully conselidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. Control is achieved
where the Group has the power Lo govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. The resuits of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consclidated income statement from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.




Magsraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1  Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of Masraf and its subsidiaries
listed below: :

Effective
Country of Principal business percentage of
Name of subsidiaries incorporation Share capital activity ownership

Al Rayan Investment LLC Qatar USD 100,000,000 Investment Banking 160%
Al Rayan Financial Brokerage Qatar QAR 50,000,000  Financial Brokerage 100%
Sapura Crest* Qatar QAR 730,000 Cil and Gas Services 51%
Al Rayan Partners {formerly “Qatar

Real Fstate Development™)* Qatar QAR 10,000,000  Real Estate Consulting 160%

* quhsidiaries of Al Rayan Investment L.1.C.

Non-controfling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, directly or indirectly, by
the Group and are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and il the consolidated statement of

financial positien, separately from parent shareholders’ equity.

Loss of Control
Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non controlling
interests and other components of equity refated to the subsidiary. :

Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in statement of income. i the Group retains any
interests in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. The
details of the disposal of the subsidiary are disclosed in Note 19 (a).

2.2  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards and interpretations
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the following
new and amendments to accounting standards and framework effective as of 1 January 2011:

During 2010, AAOFI amended its conceptual framework and issued new Financial Accounting Standard (FAS
25) “Investment in sukuk, shares and similar instruments”, which are effective as of 1 January 2011.

Statement of financial accounting no.1: conceptual framework for the financial reporting by Islamic financial
institutions

The amended conceptual framework provides the basis for the financial accounting standards issued by AAOFIL.
The amended framework introduces the concept of substance and form compared to the concept of form over
substance. The framework states that it is necessary that information, transaction and other events are accounted
for and presented in accordance with its substance and economic reality as well as the legal form.

The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on the accounting policies, financial position or
performance of the Group.

Financial accounting standard (FAS 25) “Investment in sukuk, shares and similar instruments”.

The Group has adopted FAS 25 issued by AAOIFI which covers the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of mvestment in sikuk, shares and similar investments that exhibit characteristics of debt and equity
instruments made by the Istamic financial institutions.

The adoption of FAS 25 had an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets. As a
result of the application of this new standard, the classification of the investment portfolio was revisited and
changes if any, were made in these classification in line with FAS 25.

8



Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (éontinued)

The adoption of this standard did not have any material impact or the financial position or performance of the
Group.

1AS 24 Related Party Transactions (Amendment)

The TASB issued an amendment to TAS 24 that clarifies the definitions of a related party. The new definitions
emphasise a symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarifies the circumstances in which persons and
key management personriel affect related party relationships of an entity. In adidition, the amendment introduces
an exemption from the generai related party disclosure requirements for transactions with government and entities
that are controlled, jeintly controfled or significantly influenced by the same government as the reporting entity.
The adoption of the amendment did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amendment)

The. TASB issued an amendment that alters the definition of a financial ljability in TAS 32 to enable entities to
classify rights issues and certain options or warrants as equity instruments. The amendment is applicable if the
rights are given pro rata to all of the existing owners of the same class of an entity’s non-derivative equity
instruments, to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount in any currency.
The amendment has had no effect on the financial position or performance of the Group because the Group does
not have these types of instruments.

Improvements te IFRSs

In May 2010, the JASB issued its third omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily withk a view to
removing ineonsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. The
adoptien of the following amendments resultéd in changes to accounting poiicies, but no impact on the firancial
position or performance of the Group.

» IFRS 3 Business Combinations: The measurement options availible for non-controlling interest (NCI)
were amended. Only components of NCI that constitute a present ownership interest that entitles their
holder to a proportionate share of the eniity’s net assets in the event of liquidation should be measured at
cither fair value or at the present ownership instruments® propottionate share of the acquiree’s identifiabte
net assets. All other components are to be measured at-their acquisition date fair vajue. The amendments to
TFRS 3 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The Group, however, adopted
these as of 1 January 2011 and chariged its accounting policy accordingly as the amendment was. issued to
eliminate unintended consequences that may arise from the adoption of [FRS 3.

» IFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures: The amendment was intended to simplify the disclosures
provided by reducing the volume of disclosures around collateral held and improving disclosures by
requiring qualitative information to put the quantitative information in context.

IASRB Standards and Interpretations issued but not adopied
The following TASB standards have been issued but are not yet mandatory, and have not been early adopted by
the Group:

Standard/

Interpretation Content Effective date
TFRS & Financial Instruments: Classification & Measurement (Part 1) 1 January 2015
[FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

The Group is considering the implications of the above standards, the impact on the Group and the timing of its
adoption by the Group.




Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2

2.3
€Y
@

(i1

(iif)

{b)
@

(if)

()

@

(i7)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies
Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentational curvency

The consolidated financial staternents are presented in Qatari Riyals, which is the Group’s functional and
preséntational currency. Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are medsured using that functional cutrency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling

at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
raté of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. All differences are taken to the
consolidated income statement as foreign. currency exchange gains or losses.

Non-mbnetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Group companies

As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of subsidiaries are translated into the Group’s presentation
currency at the raté of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date, and their income
statements are franslated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Date of recognition

All finaneial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, ie., the date that Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes “reguler way trades™
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Initial measurement of financial instrumenis

The classification of financial instruments at ipitial recognition depends on the purpose and the
management’s intention for which the financial instruments were acquired and their characteristics. Al
financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus fransaction costs.

Financial investments

Financial Investrments comprise of investment at fair value through income staternent, investments carried
at amortised cost and investment at fair value through equity. All investments excluding investment
carried at fair value through income statement are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration given including transactions costs associated with the investment.

Investments carried at amortised cost

Investments which have fixed or determinable payments that the Group has both the intertion and ability
to hold to maturity are classified as “Investments carried at amortised cost”. Such investments are initially
recognised and subsequently carried st cost, less impairment in value. Any gain or loss on such
investment is recognised in the consolidated statement of income, when the investment is derecognised or
impaired.

Investments af fair value through income statement

These are itially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value. All related realised and unrealised gains or losses are reported in the
consolidated statement of income.

10



Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continned)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued}
(¢)  Financial investments (continued)

(iiiy  Investment at fair value through equity

These are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and transaction costs.
After initid] recognition, investments that are classified as “investment at fair value through equity” are re-
measured at fair value on individual basis. Unrealised gains or losses arising from a change in the fair
value are recognised in the fair value reserve with the separation between shareholders’ rights and equity
of unrestricted investment account holders® rights, until it is sold, at which time the cumulative gain or
Joss previously recognised in shareholders’ equity and equity of unrestricted investment account holders is
inctuded in the consolidated statement of income.

{d}  Derecognition of financial asseis and financial iiabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

- Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantialiy all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

A financial Hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
‘Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the termis of an existing liability are substantially modified, suck an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original Hability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(e}  Fair values

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions}, without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate vaiuation
technigues. Such techniques may include:

- Using recent arm’s length market transactions.

- Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same.

- A discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

- For financial instruments that have fixed or determinable cash flows, fair value is based on the net
present value of estimated future cash flows determined by the Group using current profit rates for
investments with similar terms and risk characteristics.

- Financial instruments which cannot be measured to fair value using any of the above techniques are
carried at cost less impairment.

11



Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting pelicies (continued)
®H Recognition of financial transactions

All purchase transactions of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Group is
committed to buy the asset. Sale of financial assets is recognised on the settlement date. The ordinary purchases
and sales of financial assets require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
conventions in the market place.

{g) Equity trapsaction costs

Equity transaction costs are accounted for as a deduction from share premium. These costs include registration
and other regulatory fees, amounts paid to legal, accounting and other professional advisers. The equity
transaction costs are accounted for as a deduction from share premium to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equily transaction that otherwise would have been avoided.

(h)  Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities should not be set-off unless there is a enforceable or legal right and an
actual expeetation of set- off and when the Group intends to settle either on a net basis, or t realise the asset and
settle the liahility simuitaneously. .

The Group is party to a number of arrangements, including master netting agreements, which give it the right to
offset financial assets and financial liabilities but where it does not intend to settle the amounts on net basis, the
respective assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

@) Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into certain Islamic derjvative financial instruments to manage the exposure to profit and
foreign exchange rate risks, including unilateral promise to buy/sell cwrrencies and profit rate swaps. The Group
also sells these derivatives to customers in order to enable them to transfer, modify or reduce current and future
risks. Derlvatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair vatues are obtained from quoted market prices in active
markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is
negative.

(i)  Distribution of profit between equity of unrestricted investment accounthelders and shareholders
The Group complies with the directives of Qatar Central Bank as follows:

- A net gain on all items of income and expenses at the year end is the net profit distributable between the
shareholders and the equity of unrestricted investment accountholders.

- The share of the unrestricted investment account holders is calculated out from the net profit on the basis of
daily balances of their balances after deducting Masraf’s Mudaraba percentage agreed upon and dectared.

- In case any expense or loss incurred is proved to be resulting from negligence by Masraf due to violation of
the directives of Qatar Central Bank or proper banking conventions, the unrestricted investment
accounthalders shali not be charged with these losses. subject to the discretion of Qatar Central Bank.

- In case the results of Masraf at the year-end are net losses, then Qatar Central Bank, being the authority
responsible for determining Masraf’s accountability for these iosses, shall decide how these shall be treated
without violation to the Islarnic Shari*a rules.

- Due to pooling of unrestricted investment funds with Masraf funds for the purpose of investment, no
priority has been given to either party in the appropriation of profit.
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

() Leasing

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Group as a lessee
Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the

leased jtem are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the consolidated
income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are

classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as-rental income.

(I  Revenne recoguition

- Income on financing contracts of Murabaha is recognised on time apportionment basis using the
declining instalment method. When receivables from financing activities become non-performing and
where collectability is doubtful, incomé is suspended as per the instructions of Qatar Central Bank.

- Tjarah income is recognised on time apportioned basis over the pefiod and the profit rate is determined in
advance upon agreerment of all pariies.

- Income on Mudaraba financing is recognised when the right to receive payment is established or.
distribution by the Mudarib. In case of losses in Mudaraba, the Group’s share of losses is being deducted
from its share of Mudarib capital.

- The Group’s share as 2 Mudarib is accrued based on the terms and conditions of the related Mudaraba
agreements,

- Income on Istisna’a financing is recognized using the percentage of compietion method. The percentage
of completion is determined based on the surveys of work performed.

- Income from short-term placements and sukuk investments is recognized on a time-apportioned basis
over the period of the contract using the éffective profit rate method. The effective profit rate is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of a
financial asset or liability {or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to-the carrying amount of the financial
asset or Hability, The effective profit rate is established on initial recognition of the financial asset and
iiability and is not revised sabsequently.

- Placement fees for arranging a financing between a borrower and investor are recognized as mcome
when the financing has been arranged.

- Income on Musharaka is recognized when the right to receive payment is established or on distribution.
Int case of losses in Musharaka, the Group’s share of losses is recognized to the extent that such losses
are being deducted from its share of the capital.

- Income from dividends is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

. Other investments income is recognised on an accrual basis.

- Fees and commission income is recognised when earned.




Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
) Revenue recognition {continued)

- Profit is allocated proportionately between equity of unrestricted investment accountholders and
shareholders on the basis of the average balances outstanding during the year after deduction of Masraf’s
share as Mudarib.

(m) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that toss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash fiows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptey or other financial reorganisation and when observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or économic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial asseis carried at amortised cosi

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective eviderice of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or centinues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

Equity type investments
For equity financial investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence

that an investment or 2 group of investments is irmpaired.

In the case of equity type investments, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the investment below jts cost. Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the consclidate income statement — is
removed from the consolidated statement of financial position and recognised in the consolidated income
statement

Receivables and balances from financing activities

The Group reviews its individually significant financing activities at each statement of financial position date to
assess whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the consolidated income statement. In particular,
management judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual
results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance.
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2611

P SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Receivables and balances from financing activities (contimied)

Financing activities that have been assessed individually and found not impaired and all individually insignificant
financing activities are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similar risk characteristics, to determine
whether provision should be made due to incurred loss events for which there is objective evidence but whose
effects are not yet evident. The collective assessment takes account of data from financing aciivities portfolic
(such as level of arrears, credit utilisation, collaterals ratios), and adjustments to the effect of concentrations of
risks and economics data.

(n}  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units fair value
fess costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount
of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 18 written
down to its recoverable amount. Ii assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation madet! is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised i the consolidated income statement in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

Arn assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairmest loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amourit of the asset does not exeeed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amaount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated
income statement unless the asset is carried at revalued amoimt, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

(o)  Investment property

Investment property comprises completed property and property under construction or re-development held to
eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both.

Investment property is measured at cost including transaction cosis. Transaction costs include transfer taxes,
professional fees or legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing
investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met.

Investment property is derecognized when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
investment property are recognized in the consolidated income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.

Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the. difference between net disposal
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset in the previous full period financial statements.




Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(0}  Imvesiment property (continued)

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is & change in use, evidenced by the end of
owner occupation or commencerrient of an operating lease. Transfers are made from investment property when,

and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or commencemert of
development with a view to sale.

(p)  Property, furniture and equipment

Property, furniture and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in
value. The cost of these assets is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as per Qatar Central Bank regulations, as follows:

Computer software and hardware 3 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 6-7 years
Leaschold Improvements 10 years
Buildings 20 years

Repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the consolidated income statement when incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial
position date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
other operating income/expenses.in the consolidated income statement.

{(®  Receivables and balances from fixancing activities

Receivables and balances from financing activities are stated at their gross principal amounts less amounts
received on account of these transactions, provision for impairment, suspended profit and deferred profit relating
to future years.

Murabaha receivables
Murabaha receivables consist mainly of deferred sales transaction agreements (Murabaha) and are stated net of

deferred profits and provision for impairment.

The Group arranges a murabsha transaction by buying a commodity (which represents the object of the
murabaha) and then resells this commodity to Murabeh (beneficiary) after computing a margin of profit over cost.
The sale price (cost plus the profit margin) is repaid in installments by the Murabeh over the agreed period.

Istisna’a .

Istisna’a is an agreement between the Group and a customer whereby the Group sells to the customer an asset
which is either manufactured or acquired by the purchaser on behalf of the Group according fo agreed upon
specifications for an agreed upon price.

Istisna’a contracts represent the disbursements made as of the reporting date against the assets acquired for
Istisna’a projects plus income recognised, tess repayments received.
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Masral Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(q)  Receivables and balances from financing activ.itiés (continued)

Mudaraba
Mudaraba is stated at the fair value of consideration given less any impairment.

Mudaraba is a form of partnership between work and capital in which the Group contributes capital. Mudaraba
capital provided by the Group at inception in kind (if other than cash) is measured at the fair value of the assets. If
the valuation of assets results in difference between fair value and book value, such difference is recognized in the
consolidation income statement.

In case Muddraba capital is lost of damaged prior to the inception of work without misconduct or negligence on
the part of Mudarib, then such losses are deducted from Mudaraba capital and are treated as loss to the Group. In
case of termination or liquidation, unpaid portion by Mudarib is fecognized as receivable due from Mudarib.

Musharaka
Musharaka is stated at the fair value of consideration given less any impairment.

Musharaka is a form of capital partriership. These are stated at the fair value of consideration given less any
impairment. Musharaka capital provided by the Group at inception in kind (if other than cash} is measured at the
fair value of the assets: If the valuation of assets results in difference between fair value and book value, such
difference is recognized consolidation statement of income.

The provision for impairment of due from financing activities which represent an estimated amount for
impairment in financing portfolio through a detaiied review by management in accordance with Qatar Central
Banld's instructions.

Receivables from financing activities are written off, in events where all collection aftempts have proved uscless,
against the provision. Proceeds from receivables from financing activities thai have been previously written off
are recognised in the provision.

For purchase order Murabaha transactions, the principle of committing the purchase order is applied in

accordance with Qatar Central Bank instructions, similarly for Ijarah transactions ending with ownership (Ijarah
Muntahia Bittamleek), the principfe of committing the landlord and teasehoider is applied.

(r)  Facilities repayment negotiation schedule

Facilities whose terms have been renegotiated are subject 1o collective impairment assessment of value entirely or
individally are no longer considered past diie, but are treated as new facilities. In subsequent years, the asset is
considered to be past due and disclosed only if renegotiated.

(s} Zakat

The responsibility of payment of Zakat is on individual shareholders of the Group, equity of unrestricted
invesimerits account holders and the other account helders.

{ty  Shari’a Supervisory Board

The Group’s activities are subject to the supervision of a Shari’a supervisory board consisting of three members
appointéd by the general assembly of shareholders.

{u)  Earnings prohibited by Shari’a

The Group is committed to avoid recognizing any income generated from non-Istamic source. Consequently, all
non-Jslamic income is credited to a charity account and the Group uses these funds for various social welfare

activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(v}  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash anid cash equivalents for the purposé of the consolidated statement of cash flows represent cash on hand,
current account with Qatar Central Bank and balances with banks and other financial institutions with an original
maturity of three months or less.

(w} Investments in associates

Group investments in associates are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. These are entities over
which the Group exercises significant influence but not control and which are neither subsidiaries nor joint
ventures. Significant influence is presumed to exist if the Group holds, directly or indirectly through its
subsidiaries, 20% or more of the veting rights in an entity, unless it can be clearly demonstrated otherwise.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associates is carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group®s interest in the associate.

The consotidated income statement reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Where there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes and
discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity-

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on the Group’s investment in its associates. The Group determines at the end of the reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in the conselidated income staternent.

(x) Employees end of service benefits and pension fund

- The Group provides for end of service benefits to its expatriate employees in accordance with the Qatar
Labour Law. The provision is calculated based on the period of service for each staff at the year end. This
provision is included in other provisions under other liabilities.

- The Group also provides for its contribution to the pension fund in accordance with the Retirement and
Pension Law No. 24 of 2002 for Qatari and GCC employees, which is included in staff costs under general
and administrative expenses.

(¥}  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past
event and the costs fo settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured. The Group accounts
for provisions 10 be charged to the consolidated income statement for any potential claim or for any expected
impairment of assets, taking into consideration the value of the potential claim or expected impairment and its
tikelihood.

(z)  Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial institutions are stated at amortised cost net of any amounts written off
and provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(az) Financial gnarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Group gives financial guarantees, consisting of letters of credit, guarantees
and acceptances.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the consolidated financial statements at fair value, being the
premium received on the date the guarantee was given, and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the
financial guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liability under such guarantees are measured at
the higher of the amortised amount and the best estimate of the expenditure required to seltle any financial
obligation afising at the consolidated statement of financial position date. These estimates are determined based
on experience of similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by the judgment of Management.

Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is taken to the consolidated income statemnent. The amortisation
of the premium received is recognized in the consolidated income statement under commission and fees income.

{bb) Investment risk reserve

This is the amount appropriated by Masraf out of the income of investment account holders, after allocating the
mudarib share, in order to maintain against future losses for investment account holders.

{c¢) Contingent habilities

Contingent Habilities include guarantees, letters of credit, Group®s obligations with respect to wnilateral promise to
buy/sell currencies, profit rate swaps and others. These do not constitute actual assets or Habilities at the
consolidated statement of financial position date except for assets and obligations relating to fair value gains or
losses on these derivative financial instruments.

(dd) Estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the statement of
financial position date, which has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and Habilities within the next financial year, i¢ in rélation to impairmént of financial assets discussed below:

(i} Impairment of financial contracts and invesiments

The Group reviews its doubtful financial contracts and investments on a quarterly basis to assess whether a
provision for impairment should be recorded in the consolidated income statement. In particular, considerable
judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining the ievel of provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several
factors involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty, and actual results may differ resulting in future
¢hanges io such provisiens.

(i) Useful lives of property, furniture and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, furniture and equipment for
calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset, physical
wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence.

(iii)  Going covicern

The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue it business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the
management is not aware of any materjal uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Groug’s ability to
continue as 2 going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on the going

concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coniinned)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(ee) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the coperating segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Board of Directors as its
chief operating decision maker. All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm’s length
basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated in head office. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

(ff)y Income tax

Taxes are calculated based on tax laws and repulations. A tax provision is made based on an evaluation of the
expected tax lability. The Group operates its activities inside Qatar and not subject to tax, except Al Rayan
Investment whose profits are subject to tax as per Qatar Financial Center Authority regulations.

2.4  Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
are listed below. This listing of standards and interpretations issued are those that the Group reasonably expects to
have an impact on disclosures, financial position or performance when applied at a future date. The Group iatends
to adopt these standards when they become effective.

TAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the new IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, what remains of IAS 27 is limited to accounting for
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements. The Group does not present
separate financial statements. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
Janwary 2013. ‘

TAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2911)

As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, IAS 28 has been renamed 1AS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments i joint ventures jn addition
to associates. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Enhanced Derecogpition Disclosure Requirements

The amendment requires additional -disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but not
derecognised to enable the user of the Group’s consolidated financial statements to understand the relationship
with those assets that have not been derecognised and their associated liabilities. In addition, the amendment
requires disclosures about continuing involvement in derecognised assets to enable the user to evaluate the nature
of, and risks associated with, the entity’s continuing invelvement in those derecognised assets. The amendment
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The amendment affects disclosure only
and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASBs work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in JAS 39. The standard is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. In subsequent phases, the IASB will address
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. The completion of this project is expected over the course of
2011 or the first half of 2012. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on classification and
measurements of financial liabilities. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases,
when issued, to present a comprehensive picture.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4  Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in S1C-12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities.

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The
changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine which
entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements
that were in IAS 27.

IFRS 13 Fuair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 dees not
change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value
under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact that this
standard will have on the finaricial position and performance. This standard becomes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2613.

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT
31 Financial instruments
Definition and classification

The Group’s financial instruments represent the financial assets and liabilities. Financial assets comprise balancés
with Qatar Central Bank, balances and investments with banks and other financial institutions, receivables from
financing activities, certain financial investments, derivative financial assets and certain other assets. Financial
liabilities comprise customers’ current accounts, derivative financial liabilities and certain other liabilities.
Financial instruments also include balances due to equify of umrestricted investment accountholders and
contingent liabilities and commitments under “off finaneial position items™.

Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements explain the aceounting policies used to recognise and measure the
major financial instruments and related income and expenses.

Risk management and structure

Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through 2 process of ongeing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical
to the Group's continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures
relating to his or her responsibilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk, profit risk, liquidity risk, operating risk
and market risk, which include trading and non-trading risks.

The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment,
technology and industry. They are monitored through the Group's strategic planmning process.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directers is responsible for the risk management methedology and approving strategic plans and
risk management principles.

Risk management function

The Risk Management Function is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure
an: independent control process. It is also responsible for monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and
limits, across the Greup.
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3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1  Financial instruments (continuzed)
Risk Management and structure (continued)

Assets and liabilities
The Group’s management is responsible for managing the Group’s assets and liabilities and the overall financial
structure and also responsible for the Group’s credit and liquidity risk.

Internal audit

Risk management processes throughout the Group are audited annually by the Internal Audit Department that
examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Group’s compliance with the procedures. Internal Audit
discusses the results- of all assessments with management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the
Audit Committee.

Risk measurement and reporting sysiems

The Group’s risks are measured using a method which reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal
circumstances and unexpected lossés. Masraf also runs worse case scenarios that would arise in the event that
extreme events which are unlikely to occur do, in fact, eccur.

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Group. These limits
reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Group as well as the level of risk that the Group is
willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected industries. In addition, the Group monitors and measures
the overall risk bearing capacity in telation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk type activities and the
module makes use of probabilities derived from historical experience adjusted to reflect the economic
environment.

Information compiled from ali business departments is exaniined and processed in order to analyse, control and
identify early risks. This information is presented and explained to the Board of Diirectors, risk unit, and the head
of each business division.

On a monthly basis, detaited reporting of industry, customer and geographic risks take place. Senior management
assesses the appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses on a quarterly basis.

Frequent reports are given to the senior management and all other relevant members of the Group on the
utilisation of market limits, analysis of propriety investments and Hquidity, plos any other risk developments.

Risk mitigation

As a part of overall risk management, the Group uses swap deals and other instruments to manage exposures from
changes in profit rates, foreign currencies, equity risks, credit risks and exposures arising from forecast
transactions.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to devélopments affecting a particular industry or geographical
location.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Group’s policies and procedures inchude specific guidelines
to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio, with limits set on geographic and industry sector exposures.
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlied and managed accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the tisk that one party to a financial instrurnent will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. The Group attempts to control credit risk by tonitoring credit exposures,
limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

The Group seeks to manage its eredit risk exposure through diversification of lending activities to avoid undue
concentrations of risks with individuals or group of customers in specific locations or businesses. It also obtains
collaterals, when appropriate. The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit
risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and
valuation parameters.

The main types of collaterals obtained are as follows:
- For securities lending: cash or securities.
- For commercial lending: mortgages over real estate properties, inventory, cash or
securities.
- Forretail lending: mortgages over residential properties, vehicles and securities.

Management monitors the market value of collaterals.

The Group also obtains corporate guarantees from parent companies for receivables and balances from financing
activities to their subsidiaries.

Details of the composition of the receivables and balances from financing activities to customers are set out in
Note 6. Also the details of geographical segments are set out in Note 26. '

.3.2.1 Maximum cxposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit
enhancements

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement of
financial position. The maximum exposure is shown gross, befere the effect of mitigation through the use of
master netting and collateral agreements.

Gross Gross
MUIXimum maximum
exposure expostire
2011 2010
OAR’000 QAR 000
Balances and investments with banks and other financial institutions 4,274,109 4,988,930
Receivables and balances from financing activities 34,765,827 25,063,967
Financial investments 11,955,362 1,968,843
Other receivables 263,979 340,516
Total statement of financial position items 51,259,277 32,362,256
Letters of guarantee 3,974,575 4,786,953
Letters of credit 2,099,005 795,524
Total contingent liabilities items 6,073,580 3,582,477
Total credit risk exposure 57,332,857 37,944,733

‘Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represent the current credit risk
exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that coutd arise in the future as a result of changes in values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011 ‘

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.1 Maximum exposure to credif risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit
enhancements (contirued) .

Total maximum exposure net of collaterals is QAR 44,229 million, of which QAR 14,657 million are financing
provided to the Government and its related entities (2010: QAR 28,566 niillion, of which QAR 10,501 million are
financing provided to the Government and its related entities). The main types of collaterals obtained are cash 1%
(2010: 1%), mortgages 61% (2010: 59%), government guarantees 1% (2010: 23%) and other eligible securities
37% (2010: 17%; of the total collateral.

3.2.2 Risk concentration for maximum exposure by Sector

An industry sector analysis of the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
consolidated stitement of financial position is shown below. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the
effect of mitigation through the use of master netting and collateral agreements.

Gross Gross
maximim maximum
exposure exposure
2011 2010
QAR’000 OARG00
Staiement of financial position
Government 14,582,052 1,250,000
Government institutions 11,324,702 10,500,625
Real estate 12,272,606 2,877,166
Contracting 2,371,065 6,902,483
Consumer . 982,728 201,507
Services ' 7,858,422 9,505,410
Others 1,867,702 1,125,065
Total statement of financial position 51,259,277 - 32,362,256
Contingent liabilities
Government and government institutions 389,356 629,242
Commercial and others 5,684,224 4,953,235
Total contingent iiabilities 6,073,580 5,582,477
Total 57,332,857 37,944,733
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At 31 December 2011

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2  Credit risk (continued)
3.2.3 Credit quality of firancial assets with credit risk exposure by class

()  Receivables and balances from financing activities

Neither past Past due
due nor but not
At 31 December 2011 impaired impaired Impaired Total
QAR'000 QAR000 QAR000 QAR 000
Risk grading:
High grade - 11,730,898 - - 11,730,898
Standard grade 23,535,334 825,205 - 24,360,539
Sub-standard - - 79,559 79,559
Doubtful - - 330 530
Bad debt - - 25,980 25,980
Gross 35,266,232 825,205 106,069 36,197,506
Less: Deferred profit - - - (1,344,453)
Less: Allowance for impairment and
profit in suspense - - (87.226) (87,226)
Net 35,266,232 825,265 18,843 34,765,827
Neither past -Past due
due nor but not
At 31 December 2010 impaired impaired Impaired Total
QAR008 QAR 600 QAR 000 CAR 000
Risk grading:
High grade 11,083,462 - - 11,083,462
Standard grade 15,141,797 266,373 - 15,408,170
Sub-standard - - 354 354
Bad debt - - 11,239 11,239
Gross 26,225 259 266,373 11,593 26,503,225
Less: Deferred profit - - - (1,427,603}
Less: Allowance for impairment and
profit in suspense - (283) {11,370} (11,655)
Net 26,225,259 266,088 223 25,063,967

It is the Group's policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the financing portfolio. This
facilitates focused management of the applicable risks and the comparison of financing exposures across all lines of
business, geographic regions and products. The rating system is supported by a variety of financial analytics,
combined with processed market information to provide the main inputs for the measurement of counterparty risk.
All internal risk ratings are tailored to the various categories and are derived in accordance with the Group's rating
policy. The atiributable risk ratings are assessed anid updated regularly.




Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (centinued)
3.2  Credit risk (continued)
3.2.3 Credit quality of financial assefs with credijt risk exposure by class (continued)
(b)  Balances and investments with banks and other financial institutions
Exposures to balances and investments with banks and other financial instititions are ail of high grade.
There are no past due or impaired balances in the portfolio as at 31 Decerber 2011 (2010: nif).
{¢) Financial investments
Certain debt-type investments amounting to QAR 21,843 thousand (2010: QAR 7,281 thousand) are
impaired. The details are disclosed in Note 7.
2011 2010
OAR000 OA4AR'000
Debt-type investments 11,977,205 1,976,124
Less: allowance for impairment (21,843) {7,281)
11,955,362 1,968,843
{d)  Other receivables
Accrued profit on certaih debt type investments are impaired during the year amounting to QAR 3,126
thousand (2010: QAR 1,563 thousand). The remaining exposures are either of high grade or standard
grade.
(&)  Age analysis of past due but not impaired receivables and balances from financing activities

Past due receivables and. balances from financing activities to customers include those that are only past
due by a few days. The majority of the past due receivables and balances from financing activities to
customers are not considered to be impaired. An analysis of past due installments, by age, are provided
below:

Less than 61 te 90 Total

60 days days 2011
GAR0O0 QAR000 OARO00

Receivables and balances from financing activities:

Retail ‘ 26,692 2,037 28,729
Corporate 245.677 227,649 473,326
Real estate 193,691 129,459 323,150
466.060 359,145 825,205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2011

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)

3.2.3 Credit quality of financial assets with credit risk exposure by class (continued)

Less than 61to 90 Total
60 days days 2010
QAR000 QAR'000 OAR000
Receivables and balances from financing activities:

Retail 7,173 375 7,548
Corporate 110,067 505 110,572
Real estate 126,982 21,271 148,253
244,222 22,151 260,373

Note:

As of 31 Deceniber 2011, the Group did not obtain any additional coflaterals against the past due but not impaired
receivables and balances from financing activities.

) Impaired receivables and balances from financing activities
The details of the gross amount of impaired receivables by type is as follows:

2011 2010
QAR 000 QAR Q00

Receivables and balances from financing activities:

Retail 902 717
Corporate 105,167 10,876
106,069 11,593

3.2.4 Credit quality of financial assets with credit risk exposure by internal risk rating

2011 2010

QAR’H00 QAR000

Equivalent grades
AAA O AA- 12,027,709 1,981,839
A+to A- 2,682,431 568,642
BBB to BBB- 9,700 3,129,650
. Unrated 42,613,617 32,264,602
57,332,857 37,944,733

Unrated exposures represent financing activities granted to corporations and individuals which do not have
external credit rating. Also, the ratings used by the Group are in line with the ratings and definitions published by
international rating agencies. The above exposures include financing activities which are neither past due nor
impaired amounting to QAR 35,266 million (2010: QAR 26,225 million).
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At 31 December 2011

3 FINANCYAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
32  Credit risk (continued)
3.3  Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the Group’s earnings or capital, or its ability to meet business objectives, will be
adversely affected by changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as profit rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices. The Group manages its market risks within the framework of iimits defined by
the Qatar Central Bank.

Assets and Habilities profit rate gaps are reviewed on a regular basis which is used to reduce the profit rate gaps to
within the limits established by the Board. The Group manages its exposure to currency exchange rate fluctuations
to within the levels defined by the Board of Directors, which sets timits on currency position exposures. Positions
are monitored on an ongeing basis.

3.3.1 Profit rate risk

(@} Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk reflects the risk of a change in profit rates which might affect future earnings or the fair value of
financial instruments. Exposure to profit rate risk is managed by the Group using, where appropriate, various

financial instruments, primarily profit rate swaps. Maturities of assets and liabilities have been determined on the
basis of contractual pricing.
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3  Market risk (continued)

3.3.1 Profit rate risk (continued)

(b Profit rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the profit rate sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in profit rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's consolidated income statement. The sensitivity of the consolidated
income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in profit rates on the income generated for one year, based
on the floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities. The sensitivity of equity is calculated by
revaluing fixed rate financial assets through equity. The sensitivity of equity is analysed by maturity of the asset.
Total sensitivity of equity is based on the assumption that there are paratlel shifts in the yield curve.

2011 _ 2010
_ Increase in Sensitivity of net Increase in Sensitivity of net

Currency basis points profit basis points profit

QAR000 QAR 000
QAR 1)) (7,463) 10 2,691
USD 10 (2,666) 10 2,839
EUR 1¢ 88 10 2,290
AED 10 (136) 10 173
GBP 10 14 10 (134)
CHF 10 85 10 -

Decrease
in basis Sensitivity of Decrease in Sensitivity of
points net profit basis points net profit

Currency QAR 000 QAR'000
QAR 10 7,463 10 (2,691)
USD 10 2,666 10 (2,839
EUR 10 (88) 10 (2,290)
AED 10 _ 136 10 (173)
GBP 10 (14 10 134
CHF 1¢ (85) 10 -
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S5.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued}
3.3  Market risk (continued)

3.3.2 Cuarrency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of & financial instrument will fiuctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group takes on exposure to the effect of fluctuations in prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on
its financial position. The Board of Directors have set maximum limits on the level of currencies exposure, which

are monitored daily.

The table below indicates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the QAR on
the consolidated income statement, with all other variables held constant:

2011 _ 2010

Changein  Effecton Change in Effect on

currency income CHITEnCY income

ratein %  statement rate in % Statement
Currency QAR’000 QAR 000
EUR +10% (3,343) +10% 76
GBP +10% a7 +10% 3
Others +10% 724 +10% (165)
EUR -10% 3,343 -10% (76)
GBP -10% 17 -10% €))]
Others -10% (724) -10% 165

The Group manages its currency exposures within limits laid down by the Board of Directors. Limits are laid
down for each currency individually and. in total at the beginning of the year. The Qatar Riyal is pegged to the US
Dollar. Although the Group is net exposed to any currency risk due to the peg, iimits arc set for US Dollar
exposures. All other currency exposures are limited and the Group is not significantly exposed to other currencies

EXPOSUres.
3.3.3  Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases as a result of changes in the level of equity
indices and individual stocks. The non-trading equity price risk exposure arises from equity securities classified as
investments at fair value through equity. A 10 percent increase in the Qatar Exchange index at 31 December 2011
would have increased equity by QAR 1,928 thousand (2010: QAR 1,647 thousend). An equivalent decrease
would have resulted in an equivalent but opposite impact.
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 371 December 2011

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT {(continued)
3.4  Ligquidity risk {(continued)
(b} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Based on the methods used to determine the fair value of financial instruments explained in note 2, following are
the financial assets.and liabilities:

Carryving value Fair value

Financial assets 2011 2010 2011 2010

OAR’000 QAR 000 OAR’000 QAR'000
Balances with Central Bank excluding cash 2,096,428 1,358,033 2,096,428 1,358,033
Balances and investments with banks and other
financial institutions 4,274,109 4,988,930 4,274,109 4,988,930
Receivables and balances from financing activities 34,765,827 25,063,967 34,765,827 23,063,967
Financial investments - 12,046,247 2,136919 12,045,191 2,091,054
Financial Kabilities
Customers’ current accounts 4,171,358 1,292 350 4,171,358 1,292,356
Equity of investment accountholders 42,092,234 25,724,198 42,092,234 25,724,198

i)  Receivables and balances from financing activities

Receivables and balances from financing activities are net of allowance fer impairment. The estimated fair value
of receivables and balances from financing activities is not significantly different from its carrying valug, as a
stgnificant portion of the portfolio is subject to frequent re-pricing in line with market rates.

ii) Financial investments

Financial investments include debt type investments and equity type investments. Ecuity type investments are
measured at fair value. Fair value for debt type investment is primarily based on market prices, where ever markel
price is not available, the Group establishes the fajr value using valuation techniques that includes discounted cash
flow analysis, recent arms length transactions and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants. The fair values of debt type investments are stated in note 7.

ity Equity of unrestricied investment accountholders

The estimated fair value of equity of unrestricted investmert accountholders is not different from the carrying
vajues on the financial position date, as almost the total portfolio maturity is of very short duration and is re-
priced at market profit rates.

(c)  Fair value disclosures

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial jnvestments by
vaiuation technique: ‘

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techriiques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based
on chservable market data.
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2011

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4  Liquoidity risk (continued}

(¢} Fair value disclosures (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value

hierarchy:

Financial assets

Equity-type financial investments:
Quoted equities
Unguoted equities

Derivative financial instruments:
Profit rate swap
Unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:
Profit rate swap
Unilateral promise to buy/sell curréncies

Financial assets

Equity-type financial investments:
Quoted equities
Unquoted equities

Derivative financial mstrumments:
Prefit rate swap
Unitateral promise to buy/sell currencies

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments:
Profit rate swap
Unilgteral promise to buy/sell currencies

31 December 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
OAR000 QAR000 QAR’000 QAR'000

19,278 19278 - -
71,607 - 71,607 -
90,885 19,278 71,607 -

3,201 - .3,201 -

31,594 - 31,594 -
34,795 - 34,795 -

3,145 - 3,145 -

37,624 - 37.624 -
46,769 - 40,769 -

31 December 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
QAR 000 QAR000 QAR000 QAR 000

16,470 16,470 - -
151,606 - 151,606 -
168,076 16,470 151,606 -
3,554 - 3,554 -

5,591 - 5,591 -

11,145 - 11,145 -

5,554 - 5,554 -

16,911 - 16,911 -
22,465 - 22,465 -
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (centinued)

3.5  Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to ensure that the Group complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and that the Group maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and to maximise shareholders’ value.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to
shareholders or issue capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes from the previous
year. - '

The adequacy of the Group’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios established by
the Basel Commiittee ori Banking Supervision and adopted by Qatar Central Bank.

Capital Adeguacy
2011 2010

QAR 000 QOAR000
Tier 1 Capital 7497326 6,401,414
Tier 2 Capital 270,933 26,426
Total capital 7,768,259 6,427,840
Total risk weightetl assets 35,183,100 33,452,538
Tier T Capital ratio 21.31% 19.14%
Total Capital ratio 2297% 19.21%

Tier 1 capital includes paid up share capital, legal reserve, other reserves and retained earnings afler excluding
proposed dividend.

Tier 2 capital comprises the risk reserve and fair value reserve (45% if positive and 100% if negative).

The minimum accepted capital adequacy ratio determined by Qatar Central Bank is 10% whilst the minimum
determined by Basel Committee is 8%.

3.6 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect foss due to an event or action causing failure of technology,
process infrastructure, personnef, and other risks having an operational risk impact. The: Group seeks to minimize
actual or potential losses from operational risks failure through a framework of policies and procedures that
identify, assess, control, manage, and report those risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access,
authorisation and reconciiiation procedures, staff education and assessment processes.

3.7 Other risks

Other risks to which the Group is exposed are regulatory risk, legal risk, and reputationai risk. Regulatory risk is
controlled through & framework of compliance policies and procedures. Legal risk is managed through the
effective use of internal and external legal advisers. Reputational risk is controlied through the regular
examination of issues that are considered to have reputational repercussions for the Group, with guidelines and
policies being issued as appropriate.
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2011

4 CASH AND BALANCES WITH QATAR CENTRAL BANK

2011 2010
QAR’000 OAR000
Cash on hand 156,889 123,752
Cash reserve with Qatar Central Bank * 1,507,500 902,687
Current account with Qatar Central Bank 588,928 455,346
2,253,317 1,481,785
* The cash reserve with Qatar Central Bank represents mandatory reserve not used for the daily operations of

the Group.

5 BALANCES AND INVESTMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Current accounts
Deposits with Islamic Banks

2011
DAR’060

796,760
3477349

4,274,109

6 RECEIVABLES AND BALANCES FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(ay  Bytype

Receivables and balances from financing activities:
Murabaha

Tjarah

Isiisna’a

Musharaka

Mudaraba

Others

Total receivables and balances {rom financing activities

Defetred profit
Allowance for impairment and profit in suspense (note c)

Net receivables and balances from financing activities

2011
QAR 000

33,984,584
1,691,744
351,598
69,000

100,580
36,197,506

(1,344,453)
(87,226)

2010
OARGOD

128,920

4,860,010

4,988,930

2040
OAR000

22,881,173
1,256,699

148,728
2,205,665

10,960

26,503,225

(1,427,603)

(11,655)

25,063,967
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011 '

6 RECEIVABLES AND BALANCES FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {(continued)

(b) By sector

Government
Government
institutions
Real estate
Contracting
Consumer
Services
Other

Government
mstitutions
Real estate
Confracting
Consumer
Services
Other

Total

Murabaha Tarah Istisna’a Musharaka Mudaraba Others 2011
QAR'000 QAR000  QAR'000  QAR'000  QAR'000  QAR000  QAR’000
3,332,053 - - - - 3,332,053
11,324,702 - - - - 11,324,762
10,178,457 1,561,026 14,202 48,160 - 11,801,845
2,366,586 1,794 - 18,347 - 2,386,727
967,893 1,208 - - 14,523 983,624
3,224,880 114,290 10,422 - 86,057 3,435,649
1,245,560 13,426 326,974 2,493 - 1,588,453
32,640,131 1,691,744 351,598 69,000 100,380 34,853,053

Total

Murabaha Liarah Istisna’a Musharaka ~ Mudaraba Others 2010
QAR000 OAR000 QAR'000 OARO00 OARG00 QAR'O00 QAR 000
8,264,960 - - - 2,205,665 - 10,500,625
1,827,838 925,884 - 120,946 2,498 2,877,166
6,870,898 26,787 - 4,798 - 6,002,483
191,226 - - 2,538 8,462 202,226
4,223 388 304,028 - - - 4,527,416
45,260 - - 20,446 - 65,706
21,453,570 1,256,699 - 148,728 2,205,665 10,960 25,075,622

(¢) Movement in allowance for impairment and profit in suspense

The total non-performing receivables and balances from financing activities at 31 December 2011 amounted to
QAR 106,069 thousand représenting 0.30% of the gross receivables and balances from financing activities (2010:
QAR 11,593 thousand, representing 0.05% of the gross receivables and balances from financing activities).

Balance as at 1 January
Charge for the year
‘Write off during the year

Balance at 31 December

Balance as at 1 January
Charge for the year

Balance at 31 December

Individually Collectively Profitin Total
Impaired impaired suspense 2011
OAR000 QARO00 QAR000 QAR 000

9,312 - 2,343 11,655
23,155 47,711 5,051 75,917
(346) - - { 346)
32,121 47,711 7,394 87,226

Individually Collectively Profitin Total
Impaired impaired suspense 2010
OAR600 QAR 000 QAR’060 OAR'000

8,487 - : 8,487
825 - 2,343 3,168
9,312 - 2,343 . 11,653
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2011

7 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

2011
At fair value At amortised
through eguity cost Total
QAR 000° OAR 000° QAR 000°

Financial investment in:
Equity type instruments:

Quoted 19,278 - 19278

Unquoted 71,607 - 71,607
Total 90,885 - 90,885
Debt-type instruments:

Quoted - 693,166 693,166

Unquoted - 11,262,196 11,262,196
Total - 11,955,362 11,955,362
Total 90,885 11,955,362 12,046,247

2010
At fair value At amortised
through equity cost Toral
QAR 060° QAR 000’ QAR 000’

Financial investment in:
Equity type instruments:

Quoted 16,470 - 16,470

Unquoted 151,606 - 151,606
Total 168,076 - 168,076
Debt-type instruments:

Quoted - 702,643 702,643

Unguoted - 1,266,200 1,266,200
Total - 1,968,843 1,968,843
Total 168,076 1,968,843 2,136,919

Quoted debt-type insiruments are net of altowance for impaitment fosses of QAR 21,843 thousand (2010: QAR

7,281 thousand).
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOILIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2011 2010
OAR000 CAR 000
Balance at 1 January : 160,220 68,970
Additions - 91,250
Net movement resulting from derecognition of a subsidiary (68,970) -
Balance at 31 December 91,250 160,220

Tnvestment property pertains to freehold land and is carried at cost. The fair value of the investment property as at
31 December 2011 amounted to QAR 95 million (2010: QAR 160 million}.

The valuations were performed by DTZ, an accredited independent valuer with a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and recent experience of the location and category of the investment property being
valued.

44



15y

¥6¥ 98¢

98 IEYY
- SCH'RFO°T
(00T 0007
00F* 0 00¥‘0F
96L°06T 877°50¢
000°s 000°s
867°8% 07Z°0¢
000,470 000, 9V0
016z 1oz
IV JUILLD

TEPPI

Ly

- - REF 0T

- - 000°2
- - 00¥°0F
€o8°cl 818°97 9V0TEE

- . - 000°¢
600°1 ToT TTP0E

SHRsay

2uo U] sayuquy] - SIoSSE
Buypaady

T [07 48qi222(] [ £ jO Sv 240ys S, dno.in

00°C0T
€CEL
00'0T
00'8¥
00°0¢
0070z
1ot

by

00°0¢
ceee
00°0T
00'8%
00708
0002

rroz

1524301 9

Ieed)

bizil:1g)
JejRd)
B[QEIY IPNEY

mepd
UG

uoyplod oo
Jo AgunoD)

(1) Auedwoyy

2)eISH [89Y JUCILIDIE A, [TBSTIT

() seo1a1ag A1j1o8, SUr'y

(D) Bwoag —~ 2oUBIMSU] UBUE(]
(n) Auedwon

VIGUI[ISU] PUR JUSWISAAU] JRUITY
(@) Sutpei], ueg 1D

(%) SuISNOH SSBA [BUCHEN

Y

BMOTIOT s ST ISquiada(] T £ 18 S8 S9IBID0SEE §)f U 822Ul m.n:,—o.ﬂw QUL

SHLVIDOSSY NI INHTALLSHANY 6

[10¢ Jequieosd (¢ 1V

SINHWNALVIS TVIONVNII AHLVAITOSNOD HHI OL SHLON

(D'S'O) ushey 1V JeIsep



Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011 '

9

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (contirued)

Associates’ movement during the year s as follows:

2011 2010

QAR000 QAR'000
Balance at 1 January 386,494 211,931
Investments acquired during the year - 182,196
Share in associates’ results 14,849 (1,78%)
Share in non-Shari’a results of associate (H) 417 -
Return of associates’ capital (18,912) -
Associate reclassified from investment in subsidiaries (I) (Note 19/a) 1,048,438 -
Associates eclassified to equity-type investments - (5,844)
Balance at 31 December 1,431,286 386,494
Notes:
A) The Company was incorporated in Oman on 19 November 2008 with paid up share capital of Omani Riyal 25

B)

O

D)

E)

F)

G)

Y

million te conduct design services, consultancy services, project management, marketing, advertising, sales
and consiruction for its real estate and clients. During 2011, the Company returned 40% of its share ¢apital 1o
investors.

The Company was incorporated in Qatar on 7 October 2008 with paid up share capital of QAR 10 million to
conduct sale, purchase, lease and rent of properties.

The Company was incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia on 5 April 2009 with paid up share capital
of Saudi Riyal 510 millien to conduct leasing business.

The Company was incorporated in Qatar on 18 October 2009 with paid up share capital of QAR 200 million
and is engaged in insurance activities.

The Company was incorporated in Qatar on 8 November 2010 with paid up share capital of QAR 6 million
and is engaged in facility management.

The Company, engaged in dealing and arranging investments and credit facilities and managing and advising
on investments, was a fully-owned subsidiary as of 31 December 2010. During the year, the Group sold 50%
of its investment ir the Company. Subsequent to the sale, the investment in the Company bas been
reclassified as investment in associate. On 3 January 2012, the Company chianges its name to Seef Lusail
Real Estate Development Company W.L.L.

As at reporting date, Cl San Tradirig and Linc Facility Services are still in the pre-operating stage.
Accordingly, the Investment balances represent the acguisition cost.

The amount represents 50% of the Group’s share in results of National Mass Housing, and has been
recognized under other liabilities as per Shari’a Board instructions.

All investments are not listed.
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

10 OTHER ASSETS

2011 2010
OARO00 QAR 000
Accrued profit 267,105 42,182
Prepayments and other receivables 65,163 329,976
Advances to suppliers 9,652 1505
341,920 379,663
Less; Allowance for impairment (3,126) (1.563)
338,794 378,100
Notes:
(i) Allowance for impairment losses pertain to accrued profit relating to certain debt type investments.
(i) Other receivables include positive fair value of dérivatives amounting to QAR 34,795 thousand.
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

12 OTHER LIABILITIES

2011 2016
QAR000 OAR000
Unearned commission 207,713 126,702
Dividend payable 70,984 71,563
Other staff provisions 61,154 31,055
Accrued expenses 27,244 9,222
Escrow accounts 25,571 173,049
Social and sports fund 15,200 34,526
Provision for employees end of service benefits (a) 12,582 8,825
Others 83,019 85,089
503,467 540,031
Other liabilities include negative fair value of derivatives amounting to QAR 40,769 thousand.
(a) Provision for employees end of sexvice benefits
2011 2010
OAR'000 QAR 000
Balance at 1 January 8,825 5,796
Provisions for the year 4,549 4,252
End of service bénefits paid during the year (792) (1,223)
Ralance at 31 December 12,582 8,825
13  EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS
2011 2010 .
QAR'000 QAR 000
(a) By type
Saving accounts 936,015 374,986
Call accounts 3,271,947 2,265,384
Time deposits 37,793,694 22.935908
Profit payable to equity of unrestricted investment accountholders 90,230 147,701
Share in the fair vatue reserve 348 219
42,092,234 25,724,198
2011 2019
OAR000 QAR 000
(b) By sector
Government and governmental institutions 11,897,270 4,646,350
Individuals 2529319 1,544,436
Banks 13,195,261 8,134,454
Carporate 14,379,806 11,251,038
Profit payable to equity of unrestricted investment accountholders 90,230 147,761
Share in the fair value reserve 348 219
42,092,234 25,724,198




Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

13  EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS (continued)
In accordance with Qatar Central Bank circular No. 87/2008, no risk reserve is deducted from the profit related to

the equity of unrestricted investment accountholders and the total risk reserve is transferred from the
shareholders® profit as an appropriation.

14  NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

This represents the Group®s non-cotrirolling interest in Sapura Crest amounting to 49% of the share capital.
Sapura Crest is 51% owned by Al Rayan Investment LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Masraf.

15  EQUITY
Share capital
2011 2010
QAR 000 OAR 600
Authorised
750,000,000 shares at QAR 10 each 7,500,000 7,500,000
2011 2010
Issued & paid-up No. QAR 000 QAR 090
of shares
At 1 January 749,936,932 5,073,324 4,124 654
Dividends towards uncalled share capital for 2009 - - 948,670
Dividend towards uncalled share capital for 2010
(at QAR 2.635 per share) - 1,976,084 -
Dividend towards uncalled share capital during 2011
(at QAR 0.6 per share) - 449,962 -
Issue of new share capital 63,008 630
750,000,000 7,500,000 5,073,324

On 33 May 2011, the Board of Directors based on the approval of the General Assembly meeting on 28 March
2011 approved a dividend of 6% of the par valve of issued capital towards the uncalled share capital (QAR 0.6
per share). amounting to. QAR 449,962 thousand.

Also during the year, Masraf issued 63,068 shares, which represent the fractional shares resulted from the initial
IPO process. The fractional shares were sold through Qatar Exchange in accordance with article No. 8 of Masraf’s

Articles of Association.

Legal reserve

2011 2010
OAR060 QAR000
Balance at 1 January - 633,382
Share preraium on the new issued shares (a) 1,036
Transfer from retained eamings (b) 140,835 -
Transfer to retained earnings (¢} - (633,382}
Balance at 31 December 141.871 -
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Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

15 EQUITY (continued)
Legal reserve (continned)

(2) In accordance with the Qatar Comumercial Companics’ Law No. 5 of 2002, share premium equivalent to
164.3% of the paid up share capital was transferred te legal reserve account.

{6) According to Qatar Central Bank Law No. 33 of 2006, 10% of the profit for the year is required to be
transferred to the legal reserve until the reserve equals 100% of paid up capital.

(¢) The General Assembly, in its meeting held on 28 March 2011 and after the approval of Qatar Central Bank
and the Ministry of Business and Trade, has resolved to transfer the balance of legal reserve as of 31
December 2009 to retained earnings for the purpose of capitalizing the reserve into the uncalled portion of
the share capital.

Fair value reserve _
This reserve comprises changes in fair vatue of equity investments at fair value through equity.

2011 2010

DAR(00 OAR'000
Balance at the 1 January 6,117 465
Net unrealised gains ) 3,026 5,871
Net change during the year 9,143 6,336
Share of equity of unrestricted investment accountholders in the fair value
reserve 348 (219)
Balance at 31 December (shareholders” share) 8,795 6,117

Fair value reserve represents unearned gains/ (losses), being not available for distribution unless realised and
charged to the consolidated income statement.

Risk reserve

In accordance with Qatar Central Bank regulations, risk reserve has been created to cover contingencies. o both
the public and private sector financing activities, with a mininmsum requirement of 1.5% of the total private sector
exposure granted by Masraf and its branches inside and outside Qatar after the exclusion of the specific provisions
and profit in suspense. The finance provided to/or secured by the Ministry of Finance or finance against cash
guarantees are excluded from the gross direct financing, which should be appropriated from share hoiders profit
according to Qatar Central Bank Circular No 87/2008. As of 31 December 2011, an amount of QAR 450,000
thousand has been transferred to the risk reserve.

Also, the General Assembly, in its meeting held o 28 March 2011 and after the approval of Qatar Central Bank,
has resobved to transfer the balance of risk reserve as of 31 December 2009 to retained earnings for the purpose of
capitalizing the reserve into the uncalled portion of the share capital.

Proposed dividend
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 29 January 2012 proposed a cash dividend of 5% (2010: 38.95% of

the paid up share capital towards the uncalled share capital) of the share capital amounting to QAR 375,000
thousand (2010: QAR 1,976,084 thousand).

This proposal is subject to the approval of the shareholders’ annual generai assembly and the regulators in the
State of Qatar.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2011

15 EQUITY (coutinued)

Social and Sports Fund

Pursuant to Law No. 13 of 2008 and further clarifications of the Jaw issued in 2010, the Group made an
appropriation of QAR 35.2 million for an amount equivalent to 2.5% of the net profit relating to the year ended 31

December 2011 {2010: QAR 52 million) for the support of sports, cultural and charjtable activities.

16 INCOME FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Income from Murabaha
Income from Istisna‘a
Income from Jjarah
Income from Mudaraba
Income from Musharaka

17 INCOME FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(a) Income from investments with banks and other
financial institotions:

(b} Investments revenues:

Dividend income
Tncome from debt-type financial investments

18 NET COMMISSION AND FEES INCOME

Commission and fees income
Commission on financing activities

Commissicn on trade finance activities
Commission on banking services

Commission and fees expenses

2011 2010
OAR’000 QAR 000
1,104,807 1,419,926
970 479
117,256 109,306
49,074 73,428
19,827 15,133
1,282,934 1,618,272
2011 2010
QAR’000 CAR'000
__ 8584 _ 17252
749 531
597,562 68,907
2011 2010
QAR 000 QAR000
205,338 60,464
33,280 31,929
_ 9280 __ 18664
247,898 111,057
(1,765) (15,839)
246,133 95218




Masraf Al Rayan (Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2011

19 OTHER INCOME

2011 2010
CAR000 QAR000

Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary (a) 171,863 -
Income from Qalar Investments Authority (b) - 94,875
Rental at income 2,191 2,696
Miscellaneous 25,500 5,607
199,554 103,178

(a) During the year, the Group sold 50% of its investment in a subsidiary, Lusail Waterfront Real Estate
Company, for an amount of QAR 1,220 million which resalted in a gain of QAR 171,863 thousand
recorded under other income in the consolidated statement of income, Subsequent to the sale, the
investment in Lusail Waterfront Real Estate Company has been reclassified as investment in associate.

The details of the carrying amounts of the subsidiary disposed of during
the year at the date of the fransaction and resulfing gain on sale are
summarised in the following:

OAR 000

Assets
Investment properties 2,096,670
Bank balances 200

2,096,870
Carrying vilue of net ussets of the subsidiary sold 1,048,435
Consideration received for the 50% sold 1,220,298
Net gain recognised from the sale of 50% of the subsidiary 171,863

(b) In 2010, the Group received an amount of QAR 94,875 thousand from Qatar Investment Authority
(“QIA™) Tepresenting compensatien for the dividend paid by the Group on behalf of QIA towards the
uncalled share capital.

20  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2011 2010

QAR000 QAR'000

Staff costs 194,342 132,654
Rent and maintenance 34,490 31,988
Advertising expenses 20,610 15,166
Legal, professional and consulting fees 12,728 12,204
Board of Directors remuneration 11,726 10,422
Information technology 5,448 4,443
Shari’a Board compensation 1,224 1,063
Other operating expenses 14,760 9,371
295,328 217,311
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21 SHARE OF EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS IN THE NET

PROFIT
2011 2010

QAR 000 QAR000
Return on equity of unrestricted investment accountholders in the
profit before Masraf’s Mudaraba income 1,084,385 931,695
Magraf’s Mudaraba income (917,059) (795,127)
Return on unrestricted investment accountholders 167,326 136,568
Suppoit provided by Masraf 410,927 434,689
Return on investment account holders after Masral”s support 578,253 - 571,257
Rates of profit allotment: 2011 2010

L7 L7

More than one year deposits 2.50. 4.00
One year deposits 1.54 375
Six months deposits 1.10 3.74
Three months deposits 1.02 355
Cali accounts 0.73 1.56
Saving accounts 0.98 1.80
Saving accounts-millionaire 1.19 2.50

22 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

2011 2019
Profit for the year due to shareholders (QAR ‘000) 1,408,350 1,211,344
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (thousand) (a) 749,941 749,937
Basic earnings per share {QAR) 1.878 1615
(a)  The weighted average number of shares has been calculated as follows:
2011 2010
Nos’000 Nos 000
Weighted average number of shares at 1 January 749,937 749,937
Effect of share issuance 4 -
Weighted average number of shares at 31 December 749,941 745,937

There were no potentialiy dilutive shares outstanding at any time during the year. Therefore, the diluted earnings
per share are equal to the basic earnings per share.

L
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Masraf Al Rayan {(Q.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpese of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

2011 2010
QAR0G0 QARDO0
Cash on hand and balances with Qatar Central Bank excluding cash reserve 745,817 579,098
Balances with banks and other financial institutions 4,274,109 4,688,930
5,019,926 5,568,028

The cash reserve with Qatar Central Bank has been excluded as it is not used in the day-to-day operations of the
Group.
24  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

- (a) Capital commitments

The Group has long-term lease agreements for its office premises. The future aggregate minimum lease payments
under these rent agreements are as follows:

2011 2010
QAR 600 QAR D00
Payable not fater than 1 year 24,656 21,400
Payable later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 51,919 13,980
76,575 35,380
(b) Contingent liabilities
2011 2010
QAR'000 OAR'000
Letters of guarantee 3,974,575 4,786,953
Letters of credii 2,099,005 795,524
6,073,580 5,582,477
(c)y Other undertakings and commitments
2011 201t
QAR 000 QAR000
ljara vnutilised limits 3,899,753 744,473
Profit rate swap (A) 1,529,010 2,548,350
Unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies (B) 6,345,794 10,629,267

12,274,557 13,922,090
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24  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

{¢)  Other undertakings and cominitments {continued)

(A) Profit rate swap

Swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. In the case of profit rate swaps,
counterparties generally exchange fixed and floating profit payments in a single currency without exchanging
principal. In the case of currency swaps, fixed profit payments and principal are exchanged in different currencies.

(B) Unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies _
Unilateral promises to buy/sell cirrencies are promises to either buy or sell a specified currency at a specific price
and date in the future. The actual transactions are executed on the promise dates, by exchanging the purchase/sale

offers and acceptances between the relevant parties.

The table below shows the positive and negative fair values of derivative financial instruments together with the
notional amourits analysed by the term to maturity. The notional amounts, which provide an indication of the
volumes of the transactions outstanding at the year-end, do not necessarily refléct the amounts of future cash
flows invelved and the credit and market risk, which can be identified from the derivatives fair value.

As at 31 Decemnber 2011
Derivatives for customers
Profit rate swaps

Unilateral promise to buy/sell
currencies

As at 31 December 2010
Derivatives for customers
Profit rate swaps

Unilateral promise to buy/sell
currencies

Positive  Negative  Notional  Within three 3-12 I-5
fairvalue fair valne  amount months months years
QAR000 QAR'G00  QAR'000  QARNOG  QAR000  QAR000

3,201 3,145 1,529,010 - - 1,529,010
31,554 37,624 6,845,794 6,490,573 355,221 -
34,795 40,769 8,374,804 6,490,573 355221 1,529,018

Positive  Negative  Notional — Within three 3-12 1-3
Jfairvalue  fair value  Amount months months years
OARG00 QAR000  QAR'000  QARDOO  CAR00G  QAR000

5,554 5,554 2,548,350 - 1,019,340 1,529,010
5,591 16,911 10,629,267 16,373,421 255,846 -
11,145 22465 13,177,617 10373421 1,275,186 1,529.010
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25 OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group is divided into three operating segments which are as follows:

. Corporate Banking provides an extensive range of Islamic funded and non-funded credit facilities, deposit
services, investment advisory, currency exchange facilities, profit rate swaps, financing syndication and and
other services to Corporate, Commercial and Multinational Customers.

. Retail Banking provides investment accounts services, credit card and islamic financing to retail and
individual customers.

° AT Rayan Investment has two distinct functions. Firstly, the management of Masraf Al Rayan’s portfolio of
listed and private equities and funds, strategic investments, income producing instruments such as sukuks
and real estate investments. Secondly, the development and operation of Masraf Al Rayan’s investment
products, asset management and investment placement business.

Unallocated assets, Iiab_ilities. and revenues are related to some central functions and non vore business operations,
Kke common property & equipments, cash functions, development projects related payables efc.

The performance of the Group’s main segments can be illustrated below:

Corporate Retail Al Ravan  Unallocated
31 December 2011 Banking _ Banking _ Investmient _ Total
QAR000 QAR000 QAR’000 QAR’000 OAR’000
Operating income 2,248,792 125,699 15,678 - 2,390,169
Expenses (621,869) (41,672) (12,219) (306,059) {981,819)
Net profit / (loss) . 1,626,923 84,027 . 3,459 {306,059) 1,408,350
Total assets 52,489,113 2,397,366 94,432 290,425 55,271,336
Total liabilities and equity of unrestricted
investment accounthelders 43,211,836 3,260,280 14,703 280,240 46,767,059
Corporate Rerail Al Rayerr  Unallocated
31 December 2016 Banking Banking Investment Total
OAR000 QAR000 Q4AR'000 QAR 600 QAR 000
Operating income 1,894,977 118,785 16,319 - 2,030,081
Expenses _ (527:605) (45,131) (9,550} (236,411} (818,737)
Net profit / (loss) 1,367,372 73,654 6,729 (236,411} 1211,344
Total Assets 32,729,654 1,347,778 83,108 522,831 34,683,371
Total liabilities and equity of unrestricted
investment accountholders 25,438,527 1,872,634 12353 233,065 27,556,579
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26 GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Other
Qatar GCC Countries Total
QAR000 OAR000 OAR'000 OAR'000
At 31 December 2611
Cash and balances with Qatar Central Bank 2,253,317 - - 2,253,317
Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,166,781 1,312,903 890,425 4,274,109
Receivables and balances from financing
activities 34,686,238 - 79,589 34,765,827
Financial investments 11,447,396 399,162 199,689 12,046,247
Investment property 91,250 - - 91,250
Investment in associates 1,095,838 335,448 - 1,431,286
Property, furniture and equipment ’ 70,506 - - 70,506
Other assets 338,794 - - 338,794
TOTAL ASSETS 52,144,120 2,047,513 1,079,703 55,271,336
Customers’ current accounts 4,1-68.;.059 1,663 1,636 - 4,171,358
Other liabilities 503,467 - - 503,467
Equity of unrestricted investment 36,566,004 4,086,905 1,439,325 42,092,234
accountholders
Equity and non-controlling interests 8.504,277 - - 8,504,277
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF
UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT
ACCOUNTHOLDERS, EQUITY AND
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 49,741,807 4,088,568 1,440,961 55,271,336
Other
Qatar GCC Countries Total
OAR 000 OAR'D00 QARG00 OAR000
At 31 December 2010
Cash and balances with Qatar Central Bank 1,481,785 - - 1,48%,785
Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,640,389 1,057,301 291,240 4,988,930
Receivables and balances from financing
activities 23,711,961 - 1,352,006 25,063,967
Financial investments 1,466,722 399,162 271,035 2,136,919
Investmient property 166,220 - - 160,220
Investment in associates 41,597 339,094 5,803 386,494
Property, furniture and equipment 86,956 - - 86,956
Other assets 378,100 - - 378,100
TOTAL ASSETS 30,967,730 1,795,557 1,920,084 34,683,371
Customers’ current accounts 1,246,997 2681 42,672 1,292.350
Other liabilities 540,031 - - 540,031
Equity of unrestricted investment 23,862,173 1,255,759 606,266 25,724,198
accountholders
Equity and non-controlling interest 7,126,792 - ~ 7,126,792
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF
UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT
ACCOUNTEOLDERS, EQUITY AND NON- 32,775,993 1,258,440 648,938 34,683,371

CONTROLLING INTEREST
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27  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

These include various transactions with Board Members and Executive Management or with the companies which
held significant interests or any other parties having significant influence on the financial or operational decisions
of the Group. As at the statement of financial position date, such significant accounts include:

Transactions with rélated parties

{a)  Consolidated statement of financial position items:

2011 2010
QARG00 CAR000
Assets
Murabaha 4,263,648 4,482,693
Lizbilities
Current account 210 216
Equity of unrestricted investment accountholders 3,094 1,423,201
_ 3,304 1,423,417
(¢) Consolidated incomie statement items
2011 2010
QAR 000 GAR'000
Income from financing activities 274,813 298,795
Gain: from foreigh exchange operations 34,352 187,674
Return on équity of investment accountholders 23,142 63,187

Compensation of key management persoonel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows:

2011 2010
QARO00 OARGO0
Remuneration to Board of Directors including meeting allowances 11,726 10,422
Salaries and other benefits 5,591 4,930
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